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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

RFP BIDDERS CONFERENCE AND 

SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202006105 - Working Cars for Working Families

	BIDDERS CONFERENCE LOCATION:
	ZOOM Conference Call

	BIDDERS CONFERENCE DATE/TIME:
	July 31, 2020, 10:00 a.m., Eastern Time

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	August 7, 2020, no later than 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	August 24, 2020

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	August 31, 2020, no later than 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time (See Amendment #1)

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, 
Office for Family Independence

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	proposals@maine.gov 

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFP remain unchanged.


Provided below are questions asked at the Bidders Conference and the Department’s answers.

	Question #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Can the Department describe what the regional breakdown decision was based on, or how it was determined?
	The Regional breakdown was based on the number of ASPIRE Participants currently in each region and reduced by ten percent (10%) in regions that had significant public transportation available based on the Maine Department of Transportation’s Public Transit Options.  
The attached spreadsheet represents a portion of the population eligible for WCWF but does not represent the total population eligible for WCWF services.  The spreadsheet was developed solely for the purpose of estimating the geographic percentages contained in the RFP.  Double click on the Excel spreadsheet to view the data.

[image: image1.emf]WCWF RFP Geo  Breakdown ASPIRE numbers.xlsx



	2
	Are any specific requirements related to type of font used, font size and/or line spacing for the narrative portion of this proposal? 
	It’s at the Bidders discretion.  However, when printed, the proposal documents must be legible.   


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answers

	Question #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	a. Is there any clarification available on the overarching goals of this program? 
b. Is this program intended to prioritize vehicle ownership over providing rides?
	a. Refer to Title 22, Subtitle 3, Part 3, Chapter 1053-B, §3769-F.
b. No, the program is intended to provide transportation for employment, in whichever form is most efficient and effective.   

	2
	If ASPIRE Rule 25P is not adopted as written, what impact will that have on the timing or nature of this procurement?
	The awarded Bidder must comply with the final rule, refer to Part II.B.1.c. of the RFP. The timing of the services will be determined based on an executed contract, refer to Part I.D. of the RFP.

	3
	Page 8 Part II.  
Can the Department provide supplemental data regarding eligible participants and their geographic distribution?  Specifically:

a. What are the geographic boundaries for each of the regional areas: Central Maine, Downeast Maine, Bangor and Aroostook County, Southern Maine? 

b. What is the estimated annual number of referred participants per region? 
c. Of the total estimated number of referred participants, approximately how many are anticipated to have a disability? 
	a. The Department does not have specific geographic boundaries and expects the awarded Bidder to ensure WC4WF services provide Statewide coverage.    
b. Refer to the Excel spreadsheet in the answer to question 1 of the Bidder’s Conference questions and answers within this document.
c. The Department does not have this data.   

	4
	Page 9 Part II.C.1.b.  
Is it permissible to provide transportation to work by paying a mileage reimbursement to a friend, neighbor or family member to drive the participant to work or does the ride have to be performed by a disinterested third party? 
	Yes, mileage reimbursement is allowed for Participants, such as those eligible for Alternative Aid, who are not eligible to receive mileage reimbursement through the Work Support Team.  Rides do not have to be performed by a disinterested third party.

	5
	Page 9 Part II.C.1.b.  
Can taxi vouchers be provided to obtain transportation to meet short or long term needs?
	Yes, taxi vouchers are allowed for Participants, such as those eligible for Alternative Aid, who are not eligible for taxi vouchers through the Work Support Team.  

	6
	Page 9 Part II.C.1.b.  
Can Uber and Lyft be used to provide transportation to meet short or long term needs?
	Yes.  

	7
	Page 10 Part II.D.1.c.i.  
Can the Department provide an estimation of the number of participants who would meet the eligibility requirements for vehicle ownership?  
	The Department does not have the data to support an estimate of the number of Participants who will meet the eligibility requirement for vehicle ownership.  

	8
	Page 11 Part II.D.1.c.ii. 
This program language seems to imply that the grantee will take ownership of the vehicles and then transfer ownership to the participant upon meeting program eligibility standards.  This means the grantee would be conveying in excess of 5 vehicles a year and this suggests they would have to be licensed as a car dealer.  Is this accurate?
	The Department encourages Bidders to obtain legal counsel to ensure compliance with all State laws, rules, and regulations.  However, the services to be provided under this RFP are not intended for vehicles to be “sold” to Participants.   

	9
	Page 11 Part II.E.1.c.  
The RFP specifies vehicles procured must be model year 2015 and newer.  Will that model year change each year to reflect a certain age of vehicle or will 2015 remain the oldest model year for this program?
	The Department anticipates the vehicle model year to remain, 2015 for the duration of the initial period of performance outline in Part I.D. of the RFP.  The Department and the awarded Bidder will collaboratively determine the model year for subsequent renewal periods. 

	10
	Page 12 Part II.F.3.a.  
a. What recourse would the grantee have if a participant took steps to hide the vehicle, limit access to it, modify it or render it worthless and then fails to meet the program eligibility standards? 
b. Who would bear the cost of the vehicle?
	a. The awarded Bidder is expected to design and implement a process for the return of a vehicle when the Participant is not meeting the requirements for vehicle ownership…”, refer to Part II.F.3. of the RFP.  
b. Participant non-compliance will be outlined in the final ASPIRE Rule. Refer to the proposed ASPIRE Rule #25P.


	11
	Page 12 Part II.G.1. 

Will the Department establish standards to dictate when a waitlist might be used to delay program expenditures?  For example, will the Department establish a maximum number of individuals it will provide vehicle ownership or ride services to?
	No, the expectation of the WC4WF program is to provide services to as many individuals as the allocated funding permits.  

	12
	Page 9 Part II.C.1.c.  
Will the Department require original signed hard copies of documentation required of participants or will electronic signatures be acceptable?
	The Department will accept wet and/or properly procured and secure electronic signatures.  

	13
	Page 10 Part II.F.1.  

a. Does the WC4WF program allow for a vehicle loan financing component with payments used to support vehicle acquisition costs?  

b. If loans can be a part of the solution, and to extend the reach and duration of the program, may a portion of WC4WF funds be used directly as affordable, low-cost loans to participants for vehicle acquisition that would then be recycled and lent to the next family in need of a vehicle in years to come?  

c. Or would an outside source, such as a local partner bank, need to be identified for these loans?
	a. No, loans are not permissible through WCWF program funding.
b. No.
c. The RFP does not prohibit the Bidder or the Participant from accessing outside sources of credit.

	14
	Is the state looking for a transportation provider? 
	The Department is looking for proposals from any organization seeking to administer the WC4WF program.  

	15
	Are there any specific requirements related to type of font used, font size and/or line spacing for the narrative of this proposal, particularly the response indicating a 30 page limit (p.21, Sect A)?
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.  However, when printed, the proposal documents must be legible.   

	16
	Do the signatures on the application have to be “wet” signatures or is DocuSign acceptable (p. 21, Section A)?
	The Department will accept wet and/or properly procured and secure electronic signatures.  

	17
	Are there any limits on number of subcontractors or consultants used and provided in App. C (p. 22, Section I)?
	No.  

	18
	Are there any exceptions to 95% of scheduled rides will be picked up within 10 minutes of scheduled pick-up time (p. 30, Section K)?
	The Department expects the awarded Bidder to ensure ninety-five percent (95%) of scheduled rides are picked up within ten (10) minutes of the scheduled pick-up time.   

	19
	Is this a cost reimbursement contract (p. 7, Section D)?
	Yes.
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Feb 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		136		6.34 %

				Skowhegan		85		3.96 %

				Lewiston		365		17.02 %

				Farmington		52		2.43 %

				Augusta		217		10.12 %

		Central Total				855		39.88 %

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		98		4.57 %

				Machias		20		0.93 %

				Ellsworth		38		1.77 %

				Calais		51		2.38 %

		Downeast Total				207		9.65 %

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		79		3.68 %

				Fort Kent		28		1.31 %

				Caribou		109		5.08 %

				Bangor		335		15.63 %

		Northern Total				551		25.70 %

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		312		14.55 %

				Sanford		124		5.78 %

				Biddeford		95		4.43 %

		Southern Total				531		24.77 %

		Grand Total				2,144





Mar 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		134		6.23 %

				Skowhegan		79		3.67 %

				Lewiston		379		17.62 %

				Farmington		49		2.28 %

				Augusta		230		10.69 %

		Central Total				871		40.49 %

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		102		4.74 %

				Machias		18		0.84 %

				Ellsworth		39		1.81 %

				Calais		47		2.19 %

		Downeast Total				206		9.58 %

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		78		3.63 %

				Fort Kent		27		1.26 %

				Caribou		107		4.97 %

				Bangor		315		14.64 %

		Northern Total				527		24.50 %

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		322		14.97 %

				Sanford		132		6.14 %

				Biddeford		93		4.32 %

		Southern Total				547		25.43 %

		Grand Total				2,151





Apr 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		128		5.84 %

				Skowhegan		82		3.74 %

				Lewiston		372		16.98 %

				Farmington		57		2.60 %

				Augusta		241		11.00 %

		Central Total				880		40.16 %

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		108		4.93 %

				Machias		18		0.82 %

				Ellsworth		46		2.10 %

				Calais		51		2.33 %

		Downeast Total				223		10.18 %

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		71		3.24 %

				Fort Kent		28		1.28 %

				Caribou		107		4.88 %

				Bangor		324		14.79 %

		Northern Total				530		24.19 %

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		333		15.20 %

				Sanford		131		5.98 %

				Biddeford		94		4.29 %

		Southern Total				558		25.47 %

		Grand Total				2,191





May 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		123		5.76%

				Skowhegan		83		3.89%

				Lewiston		363		17.00%

				Farmington		55		2.58%

				Augusta		229		10.73%

		Central Total				853		39.95%

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		106		4.96%

				Machias		20		0.94%

				Ellsworth		37		1.73%

				Calais		44		2.06%

		Downeast Total				207		9.70%

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		70		3.28%

				Fort Kent		31		1.45%

				Caribou		98		4.59%

				Bangor		323		15.13%

		Northern Total				522		24.45%

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		329		15.41%

				Sanford		130		6.09%

				Biddeford		94		4.40%

		Southern Total				553		25.90%

		Grand Total				2,135





Jun 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		116		5.50%

				Skowhegan		77		3.65%

				Lewiston		350		16.60%

				Farmington		47		2.23%

				Augusta		217		10.29%

		Central Total				807		38.28%

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		113		5.36%

				Machias		18		0.85%

				Ellsworth		35		1.66%

				Calais		49		2.32%

		Downeast Total				215		10.20%

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		64		3.04%

				Fort Kent		30		1.42%

				Caribou		103		4.89%

				Bangor		328		15.56%

		Northern Total				525		24.91%

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		338		16.03%

				Sanford		131		6.21%

				Biddeford		92		4.36%

		Southern Total				561		26.61%

		Grand Total				2,108





Jul 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		118		5.50%

				Skowhegan		80		3.73%

				Lewiston		369		17.21%

				Farmington		55		2.57%

				Augusta		217		10.12%

		Central Total				839		39.13%

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		117		5.46%

				Machias		15		0.70%

				Ellsworth		32		1.49%

				Calais		49		2.29%

		Downeast Total				213		9.93%

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		71		3.31%

				Fort Kent		33		1.54%

				Caribou		98		4.57%

				Bangor		320		14.93%

		Northern Total				522		24.35%

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		356		16.60%

				Sanford		123		5.74%

				Biddeford		91		4.24%

		Southern Total				570		26.59%

		Grand Total				2,144





Aug 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		115		5.46%

				Skowhegan		79		3.75%

				Lewiston		384		18.24%

				Farmington		58		2.76%

				Augusta		202		9.60%

		Central Total				838		39.81%

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		114		5.42%

				Machias		21		1.00%

				Ellsworth		37		1.76%

				Calais		52		2.47%

		Downeast Total				224		10.64%

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		77		3.66%

				Fort Kent		26		1.24%

				Caribou		89		4.23%

				Bangor		314		14.92%

		Northern Total				506		24.04%

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		331		15.72%

				Sanford		121		5.75%

				Biddeford		85		4.04%

		Southern Total				537		25.51%

		Grand Total				2,105





Sep 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		112		5.24%

				Skowhegan		74		3.46%

				Lewiston		387		18.11%

				Farmington		56		2.62%

				Augusta		218		10.20%

		Central Total				847		39.64%

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		115		5.38%

				Machias		21		0.98%

				Ellsworth		37		1.73%

				Calais		54		2.53%

		Downeast Total				227		10.62%

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		83		3.88%

				Fort Kent		22		1.03%

				Caribou		97		4.54%

				Bangor		301		14.09%

		Northern Total				503		23.54%

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		346		16.19%

				Sanford		127		5.94%

				Biddeford		87		4.07%

		Southern Total				560		26.20%

		Grand Total				2,137





Oct 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		120		5.51%

				Skowhegan		77		3.54%

				Lewiston		384		17.65%

				Farmington		56		2.57%

				Augusta		214		9.83%

		Central Total				851		39.11%

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		117		5.38%

				Machias		23		1.06%

				Ellsworth		36		1.65%

				Calais		55		2.53%

		Downeast Total				231		10.62%

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		79		3.63%

				Fort Kent		22		1.01%

				Caribou		104		4.78%

				Bangor		296		13.60%

		Northern Total				501		23.02%

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		373		17.14%

				Sanford		129		5.93%

				Biddeford		91		4.18%

		Southern Total				593		27.25%

		Grand Total				2,176





Nov 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		115		5.31%

				Skowhegan		80		3.70%

				Lewiston		373		17.24%

				Farmington		56		2.59%

				Augusta		229		10.58%

		Central Total				853		39.42%

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		115		5.31%

				Machias		28		1.29%

				Ellsworth		38		1.76%

				Calais		57		2.63%

		Downeast Total				238		11.00%

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		75		3.47%

				Fort Kent		18		0.83%

				Caribou		102		4.71%

				Bangor		294		13.59%

		Northern Total				489		22.60%

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		376		17.38%

				Sanford		119		5.50%

				Biddeford		89		4.11%

		Southern Total				584		26.99%

		Grand Total				2,164





Dec 19

						Grand Total

						Case Count		Per Site

		Central

		Central		South Paris		113		5.24%

				Skowhegan		74		3.43%

				Lewiston		345		16.00%

				Farmington		53		2.46%

				Augusta		232		10.76%

		Central Total				817		37.89%

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		117		5.43%

				Machias		30		1.39%

				Ellsworth		40		1.86%

				Calais		52		2.41%

		Downeast Total				239		11.09%

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		75		3.48%

				Fort Kent		23		1.07%

				Caribou		104		4.82%

				Bangor		312		14.47%

		Northern Total				514		23.84%

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		374		17.35%

				Sanford		123		5.71%

				Biddeford		89		4.13%

		Southern Total				586		27.18%

		Grand Total				2,156





Jan 20

						Grand Total				Anticipated to uses WC4WF		Reduced per Public Transportation		Increase based on increase in Combined TANF+SSP cases fycy2006 to fycy 2009

						Case Count		Per Site		33%		10% reduction		(11,216 to 13,516 is a 1.205 multiplier)

		Central

		Central		South Paris		113		5.09%		37		37		45

				Skowhegan		83		3.74%		27		27		33

				Lewiston		362		16.30%		119		108		130

				Farmington		51		2.30%		17		17		20

				Augusta		226		10.18%		75		67		81

		Central Total				835		37.60%		276		256		309

		Downeast

		Downeast		Rockland		125		5.63%		41		37		45

				Machias		29		1.31%		10		10		12

				Ellsworth		46		2.07%		15		14		16

				Calais		56		2.52%		18		18		22

		Downeast Total				256		11.53%		84		79		95

		Northern

		Northern		Houlton		74		3.33%		24		22		26

				Fort Kent		26		1.17%		9		9		10

				Caribou		112		5.04%		37		33		40

				Bangor		339		15.26%		112		101		121

		Northern Total				551		24.81%		182		165		198

		Southern

		Southern		South Portland		371		16.70%		122		110		133

				Sanford		126		5.67%		42		42		50

				Biddeford		82		3.69%		27		24		29

		Southern Total				579		26.07%		191		176		212

		Grand Total				2,221				733		676		814






